
City of Saginaw
Planning and Zoning Commission

Meeting Agenda

Tuesday, March 12, 2024, 6:00 PM
Council Chamber
333 West McLeroy Boulevard
Saginaw, Texas 76179

1: Call to Order

1A. Roll Call to Establish Quorum

1B. Audience Participation

1C. Approval of Minutes
Minutes for February 13, 2024.

2: Public Hearings

2A. Consideration and Action Regarding a Request for a Specific Use Permit to Allow a Convenience Store with Fuel
Sales at 500 S. Saginaw Boulevard.

3: Business

3A. WORKSHOP-- Planning and Zoning Commission Training

4: Staff Report

4A. Project Updates
Project updates for February 2024.

5: Executive Session

6: Adjournment

Date Posted: March 6, 2024



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

 
 
David Kraus    Place No. 1   Term Expires July 1, 2025  
 
 
William Barngrover  Place No. 2   Term Expires July 1, 2024      
 
 
Philip Allen   Place No. 3   Term Expires July 1, 2025  
 
 
Lainey Wood   Place No. 4   Term Expires July 1, 2024  
 
 
Jason LaBruyere  Place No. 5   Term Expires July 1, 2025 
 
 
Benjamin Guttery  1st Alternate   Term Expires July 1, 2025  
   
 
Malinda Julien   2nd Alternate    Term Expires July 1, 2024      



 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

 

Anyone in the audience who would like to speak on an agenda item and is not 
listed as a representative for that item; please proceed by filling out an audience 
participation form to speak on that item. Audience participation forms are located 
at the front entrance of the chambers. Please turn in your filled out form to the 
Planning Manager whom will pass it on to the Chairman. The Chairman will call 
on you at the appropriate time.  



City of Saginaw

Planning & Zoning Commission Memorandum

Prepared By: Susy Victor

Approval of Minutes
Minutes for February 13, 2024.

Meeting

Tuesday, March 12, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Call to Order Item: 1C

Reference File

Community Goals

Attachments

02.13.24.pdf

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

The minutes for February 13, 2024 are presented for approval.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

N/A

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval.



1. Call to Order

1A. Roll Call to Establish Quorum

Chairman Barngrover called roll. The quorum will consist of Chairman Barngrover,

Member Kraus, and Alternate Member Julien.

1B. Audience Participation

Chairman Barngrover explained the protocol for audience participation.

1C. Approval of Minutes

The minutes of a regular meeting on December 12, 2023, were presented for approval.

Minutes for the Planning & Zoning Commission

333 West McLeroy Boulevard, Saginaw, Texas 76179

February 13, 2024, 6�03 PM - February 13, 2024, 7�46 PM

Present at the Meeting:
Member, Place No. 1, David Kraus
Chairman, Place No. 2, William Barngrover
Alternate Member, Alt. No. 2, Malinda Julien
City Attorney, Bessie Bronstein
Planning Manager, Susy Victor-Trevino
Planning Technician, Maria Hernandez

Absent from the Meeting:
Member, Place No. 3, Phillip Allen
Member, Place No. 4, Lainey Wood
Vice-Chairman, Place No. 5, Jason LaBruyere
Alternate Member, Alt. No. 1, Benjamin Guttery

Visitors at the Meeting:
Jerry B. Robbins
Melissa Robbins
Jon Julien
Christine Greenlee
Shane Greenlee
Kurt M. Hicks
Kim Getlmeia
Grace Gatica
Sarah Gordon
Destiny Gordon



David Kraus made a motion to Approve that was seconded by Malinda Julien with a

result of 3-0-0-0. passing

2. Public Hearings

2A. PUBLIC HEARING-- Consideration and Action Regarding a Request for a Change

in Zoning from Office Professional (OP) to Neighborhood Mixed-Use (NMU) on the

approximate 9.9 acres out of the Walker, Josiah Survey, Abstract 1602 Tract 3A1F &

A1798 TRS 1E1 & 1E2 more commonly known as 1051 Grand Central Parkway (Per

TAD).- 6�05 PM

Public Hearing was opened at 6�05 PM and closed at 7�07 PM

Susy Victor-Trevino, Planning Manager, briefed the Commission and the audience on the

background of the item through a PowerPoint presentation. She went over the frequently

asked questions that the community has had, such as; the property location, notice

requirements, the land classifications, and the reasoning behind the zoning request.

She explained that the rezoning was a product of the implementation phase of the

Comprehensive Plan's future land use plan. This item was city-initiated and not driven by

any potential development. She stated that rezoning can be utilized as a proactive tool

that cities use to plan for the future.

The Planning Manager also shared the State of Texas's legal requirements for mail-out

notices within 200 feet of the subject property and posting a legal class field to

announce the public hearing. She explained and showed the audience how residents can

sign up for digital notifications through the city website to become notified of all future

public hearings via text or e-mail.

Audience participation consisted of the following individuals:

The Chairman also read aloud the reply forms for the following individuals:

Grace Gatica

Shawn Greenlee

Sheena Hensley

Kurt M. Hicks

Jerry B. Robbins

Gadalia Estremera

William Hodges



City Attorney, Bessie Bronstein, explained that the audience and staff could only discuss

the property in question when analyzing the rezoning per the Open Meetings Act. All of

the audience members and reply-form senders were opposed to the rezoning due to the

possibility of a multi-family development on the vacant tract. They shared their concerns

regarding crime, traffic, and property values. Various audience members had questions

for staff regarding the intent of the rezoning, the owner's stance, noticing, and lack of

communication. Planning Manager, Victor-Trevino and City Attorney, Bessie Bronstein,

responded to all of their questions and concerns and explained the overall hearing and

voting process.

A motion was made by Alternate Member Julien to table the item with no second.

Motion failed.

David Kraus made a motion to Deny that was seconded by Malinda Julien with a result

of 3-0-0-0. passing

3. Business

3A.WORKSHOP-- Planning and Zoning Commission Training- 7�40 PM

City Attorney, Bessie Bronstein, briefly introduced the training to the Commission and

explained that she believed it would be best to wait until all members were present to

proceed with the formal training. The Planning and Zoning Commission agreed and the

item was tabled to the next meeting.

4. Staff Report

4A. January 2024 Staff Report- 7�44 PM

Planning Manager, Susy Victor-Trevino reviewed current projects under construction in

the City.

5. Executive Session

6. Adjournment

6A. Adjournment

Cassie Johnson

Phyllis and Gardy Modgling

Kathy and Richie Serrano

Kurt M. Hicks and Judy Sutherland



Malinda Julien made a motion to Approve that was seconded by David Kraus with a

result of 3-0-0-0. passing



City of Saginaw

Planning & Zoning Commission Memorandum

Prepared By: Susy Victor

Consideration and Action Regarding a Request for a Specific Use Permit to Allow a Convenience Store with

Fuel Sales at 500 S. Saginaw Boulevard.

Meeting

Tuesday, March 12, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Public Hearings Item: 2A

Reference File

Community Goals

Attachments

SUP (Printed Application).pdf

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

A few years ago, the City of Saginaw created a zoning overlay district for the Saginaw Boulevard corridor. The Saginaw 

Boulevard Overlay District requires any applicant seeking to develop a convenience store with fuel sales to apply and obtain 

a "specific use permit" (SUP) to be considered a permissible use. These establishments are no longer allowed by right on 

property within the district.

When the Saginaw Boulevard Overlay District was adopted, some existing structures within the district became deemed 

"legal non-conforming" structures. Legal non-conforming structures indicate that a structure does not conform to today's 

zoning standards but did conform to the zoning standards previously established prior to a rezoning/ordinance change. 

Legal non-conforming structures are allowed to remain in their existing locations and keep their legal non-conforming status 

as long as no further modifications cause the structure to become further non-conforming. If a structure creates 

modifications increasing their non-conformity they lose their status as a legal non-conforming structure.

The applicant for 500 S. Saginaw Boulevard (Circle K) has applied for a SUP to allow a convenience store with fuel sales. The 

use currently exists but they are proposing to build an above ground DEF tank that would make the property further non-

conforming. 

Staff recommends denial of this SUP and are not in favor of an above ground DEF tank being built on this property. The 

intent of the overlay district is to create a more visually appealing aesthetic for the boulevard while promoting the general 

welfare of the community; staff believes an above ground DEF tank would deter from this goal and create safety concerns.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

N/A

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends denial.



SUP (Alternate Option Letter).pdf

SUP (Site Plan).pdf

SUP (Plans).pdf

SUP (Zoning Compliance Report).pdf

SUP Application - 500 S Saginaw Blvd.pdf







 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

   

 

 

 

 For the Circle K located at the address above; we are proposing an alternate option to also be 
reviewed during our board meeting. The current drawings provided, call for the relocation/ placement of 
and above ground DEF tank. As a secondary option we would also like to propose the idea of placing the 
tank underground. The proposed DEF tank does not contain any hazardous fluids and is needed to 
supplement the need for diesel fueled vehicles in order to be in compliance with EPA regulations in all 50 
states. 
 
If the alternative option is approved as a viable option, we will then provide updated drawings with the 
underground tank option for further review. Any questions regarding the underground tank option can be 
addressed during our board meeting.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
Keyanna Yerry  
Project Manager 
214-377-6423 | kyerry@core-states.com  
 

February 8, 2024 
 
Plan Check No.: TBD 
 
 
 
Subject:  Circle K – Saginaw, TX 
DEF Tank Relocation Alternate  
 
Job Name: CRKTXBU – Saginaw, TX (500 S. Saginaw Blvd.) 
Job Address: 500 S. Saginaw Blvd., Saginaw, TX 76179 
 
To Whom it May Concern,  
 
 



W

W

DYH

W

WV

WEST SOUTHERN AVENUE

WV

A

E

E

E

TBM #1

TBM #2

SO
U

TH
 SAG

IN
AW

 BO
U

LEVAR
D

(AKA U
.S. H

IG
H

W
AY N

O
. 81)

TANK
9'

3.7'

14'

14'

A

B

C
(TYP.)

SHEET NO.

JOB #:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

DATE:

SHEET TITLE

1

A

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

I

DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY CORESTATES, INC.,
INCLUDING THIS DOCUMENT, ARE TO BE USED

ONLY FOR THE SPECIFIC PROJECT AND SPECIFIC
USE FOR WHICH THEY WERE INTENDED.  ANY

EXTENSION OF USE TO ANY OTHER PROJECTS,
BY OWNER OR BY ANY OTHER PARTY, WITHOUT

THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF
CORESTATES, INC. IS DONE UNLAWFULLY AND
AT THE USERS OWN RISK.  IF USED IN A WAY
OTHER THAN THAT SPECIFICALLY INTENDED,

USER WILL HOLD CORESTATES, INC. HARMLESS
FROM ALL CLAIMS AND LOSSES.

Drawing: P:\Circle K - TXBU Remodels\Saginaw, TX_#2744528 (500 S. Saginaw Blvd)-MSL.37682.CRK\Design Files\Civil\Drawings\Presentation\MSL.37682.CRK-P-SITE.dwg ;Layout1Plot Date/Time: Dec. 11, 23 - 15:26:10User: KCARTER

SITE LOCATION

ENGINEER SEAL

DOCUMENT

REVISIONS
REV DATE COMMENT BY

CLIENT

CHECKED BY:

THE CONTRACTOR IS SPECIFICALLY CAUTIONED THAT THE LOCATION AND/OR
ELEVATION OF EXISTING UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THESE PLANS IS BASED ON DESIGN
DRAWINGS, RECORDS OF THE VARIOUS UTILITY COMPANIES, AND WHERE POSSIBLE,
MEASUREMENTS TAKEN IN THE FIELD.  CORESTATES, INC. DOES NOT GUARANTEE
THAT LOCATIONS SHOWN ARE EXACT.  THE CONTRACTOR MUST CONTACT THE
APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AT LEAST 72 HOURS BEFORE ANY EXCAVATION TO
REQUEST EXACT FIELD LOCATIONS OF UTILITIES.

Call before you dig.
below.Know what's

20
1 

S.
 M

AP
LE

 A
VE

N
U

E
AM

BL
ER

, P
A 

19
00

2
PH

O
N

E 
(2

15
) 8

09
-2

12
5

M
SW

AG
G

AR
D

@
C

O
R

E-
ST

AT
ES

.C
O

M

CONSTRUCTION
DOCUMENT FOR

CIRCLE K AT
SAGINAW, TX

MSL.37682.CRK

12/06/23

KNC

BLS

500 S SAGINAW BLVD,
SAGINAW, TX

SITE PLAN

C1

1"=10'

1" = 10'

0 10510 2.5
GRAPHIC SCALE

MB

SITE LEGEND
EXISTING PROPERTY BOUNDARY LINE
EXISTING ADJOINING PROPERTY LINE

PROPOSED CURB

PROPOSED DEPRESSED CURB

PROPOSED STORM STRUCTURES

PROPOSED SANITARY STRUCTURES

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED CONCRETE

PROPOSED WATER STRUCTURES

PROPOSED PARKING COUNT

PROPOSED BUILDING

PROPOSED ASPHALT

E

PROPOSED CURB AND GUTTER

EXISTING UTILITY EASEMENT

PROPOSED SITE LIGHTING FIXTURES

EXISTING EDGE OF PAVEMENT

EXISTING WATER STRUCTURE

EXISTING SANITARY STRUCTURES
WV

EXISTING CURB AND GUTTER

EXISTING STORMWATER STRUCTURES

SPILL GUTTER

C

D

XX

S

PP
EXISTING ELECTRIC STRUCTURE

PROPOSED RIPRAP

KEYED NOTES:
A. PROPOSED DEF TANK
B. PROPOSED CONCRETE PAVING
C. PROPOSED BOLLARDS



TK001

COVER SHEET

FUEL SYSTEM DEF TANK RELOCATION DRAWINGS

CIRCLE K STORES, INC.
NEC FRANKFORD AVE. & 114TH ST.

LUBBOCK, TX 79424

SYMBOLS LEGENDDESIGN CODES

SHEET # SHEET NAME

TK001 COVER

TK101 SITE PIPING PLAN
TK002 GENERAL NOTES

TK504 FUEL SYSTEM DETAILS

API AMERICAN PETROLEUM INSTITUTE
N.C. NORMALLY CLOSED
& AND
NIP NIPPLE
@ AT
NO. NUMBER
A.C.  ASPHALT CONCRETE
N.O.  NORMALLY OPEN
APPROX. APPROXIMATE
N.T.S.  NOT TO SCALE
AUX.  AUXILIARY
N/A NOT APPLICABLE
BLU.  BLUE
O.D.  OUTSIDE DIAMETER
BLK.  BLACK
P PRODUCT LINE
℄ CENTERLINE
PVC POLYVINYL CHLORIDE
COMB.  COMBINATION
PLC.  PLACES
CONN.  CONNECTOR/CONNECTION
± PLUS OR MINUS
CORP.  CORPORATION
# POUND OR NUMBER
CSLD CONTINUOUS STATISTICAL LEAK DETECTION
QTY.  QUANTITY
ø DIAMETER
REF. REFERENCE
DIM.  DIMENSION
REQD.  REQUIRED
D.C.  DIRECT CURRENT
RSG.  RIGID STEEL GALVANIZED
DWG.  DRAWING
SCH.  SCHEDULE
DBL.  DOUBLE
SCR'D.  SCREWED
(E) EXISTING
SEC.  SECTION
ELECT.  ELECTRICAL
SPEC'S.  SPECIFICATIONS
E.S.O.  EMERGENCY SHUT OFF
S.T.P.  SUBMERGED TURBINE PUMP
EMT ELECTRICAL METALLIC TUBING
TYP.  TYPICAL
ELL ELBOW
U.L.  UNDERWRITERS LABORATORY
EMT ELECTRICAL METALLIC TUBING
U.F.C.  UNIFORM FIRE CODE
FLEX.  FLEXIBLE
U.G.  UNDER GROUND
FRP FIBERGLASS REINFORCED PLASTIC
U.S.T.  UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS
FNPT FEMALE NATIONAL PIPE THREAD
UNL UNLEADED
F.G.  FIBERGLASS
V VAPOR LINE
' FEET

ALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL COMPLY WITH:
LOCAL BUILDING CODES AND ORDINANCES
LOCAL FIRE CODE AND ORDINANCES
NFPA 30
NFPA 30A
LATEST EDITION OF API RECOMMENDED PRACTICES - 1615

VAC VOLT AMP CURRENT
ELD ENHANCED LEAK DETECTION
VIO.  VIOLET
GAL.  GALLON
V.R.  VAPOR RECOVERY
GALV.  GALVANIZED
WHT WHITE HEX HEXAGON
W/ WITH
H.P.  HORSEPOWER
I.D.  INSIDE DIAMETER
" INCH
J-BOX JUNCTION BOX
MAX.  MAXIMUM
MFRS MANUFACTURERS
MNPT MALE NATIONAL PIPE THREADS
MIN.  MINIMUM 
NPT NATIONAL PIPE THREAD
(N) NEW DOB SCAN NO.

DESCRIPTIONDATEISSUE

PROJECT INFORMATION

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

AS NOTED

CRK.34611.AE.CRK

CHECKED BY:
DRAWN BY:
SCALE:
DATE:
PROJECT NO:

C
IR

C
LE

 K
C

IR
C

LE
 K

 S
TO

RE
S,

 IN
C

.
UN

IV
ER

SI
TY

 A
V

E.
 &

 1
14

TH
 S

T.
LU

BB
O

C
K,

 T
X 

79
42

4

D
O

C
U

M
EN

TS
 P

RE
PA

RE
D

 B
Y 

C
O

RE
ST

A
TE

S,
 IN

C
LU

D
IN

G
 T

H
IS

 D
O

C
UM

EN
T,

 A
RE

 T
O

 B
E 

U
SE

D
 O

N
LY

 F
O

R 
TH

E
SP

EC
IF

IC
 P

RO
JE

C
T 

A
N

D
 S

PE
C

IF
IC

 U
SE

 F
O

R 
W

H
IC

H
 T

H
EY

 W
ER

E 
IN

TE
N

D
ED

.  
A

N
Y 

EX
TE

N
SI

O
N

 O
F 

US
E 

TO
 A

N
Y

O
TH

ER
 P

RO
JE

C
TS

, B
Y 

O
W

N
ER

 O
R 

BY
 A

N
Y 

O
TH

ER
 P

A
RT

Y,
 W

IT
H

O
UT

 T
H

E 
EX

PR
ES

SE
D

 W
RI

TT
EN

 C
O

N
SE

N
T 

O
F

C
O

RE
ST

A
TE

S,
 IN

C
. I

S 
D

O
N

E 
UN

LA
W

FU
LL

Y 
A

N
D

 A
T 

TH
E 

US
ER

S 
O

W
N

 R
IS

K.
  I

F 
US

ED
 IN

 A
 W

A
Y 

O
TH

ER
 T

HA
N

 T
H

A
T

SP
EC

IF
IC

A
LL

Y 
IN

TE
N

D
ED

, U
SE

R 
W

IL
L 

H
O

LD
 C

O
RE

ST
A

TE
S,

 IN
C

. H
A

RM
LE

SS
 F

RO
M

 A
LL

 C
LA

IM
S 

A
N

D
 L

O
SS

ES
.

PERMIT SET12/11/231

212 SE 34th Street
Suite 2
Bentonville, AR 72712
479.986.4400
core-states.com

rkientz
Snapshot



DOB SCAN NO.

DESCRIPTIONDATEISSUE

PROJECT INFORMATION

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

AS NOTED

CRK.34611.AE.CRK

CHECKED BY:
DRAWN BY:
SCALE:
DATE:
PROJECT NO:

C
IR

C
LE

 K
C

IR
C

LE
 K

 S
TO

RE
S,

 IN
C

.
UN

IV
ER

SI
TY

 A
V

E.
 &

 1
14

TH
 S

T.
LU

BB
O

C
K,

 T
X 

79
42

4

D
O

C
U

M
EN

TS
 P

RE
PA

RE
D

 B
Y 

C
O

RE
ST

A
TE

S,
 IN

C
LU

D
IN

G
 T

H
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T,
 A

RE
 T

O
 B

E 
U

SE
D

 O
N

LY
 F

O
R 

TH
E

SP
EC

IF
IC

 P
RO

JE
C

T 
A

N
D

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
 U

SE
 F

O
R 

W
H

IC
H

 T
H

EY
 W

ER
E 

IN
TE

N
D

ED
.  

A
N

Y 
EX

TE
N

SI
O

N
 O

F 
US

E 
TO

 A
N

Y
O

TH
ER

 P
RO

JE
C

TS
, B

Y 
O

W
N

ER
 O

R 
BY

 A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
A

RT
Y,

 W
IT

H
O

UT
 T

H
E 

EX
PR

ES
SE

D
 W

RI
TT

EN
 C

O
N

SE
N

T 
O

F
C

O
RE

ST
A

TE
S,

 IN
C

. I
S 

D
O

N
E 

UN
LA

W
FU

LL
Y 

A
N

D
 A

T 
TH

E 
US

ER
S 

O
W

N
 R

IS
K.

  I
F 

US
ED

 IN
 A

 W
A

Y 
O

TH
ER

 T
H

A
N

 T
HA

T
SP

EC
IF

IC
A

LL
Y 

IN
TE

N
D

ED
, U

SE
R 

W
IL

L 
H

O
LD

 C
O

RE
ST

A
TE

S,
 IN

C
. H

A
RM

LE
SS

 F
RO

M
 A

LL
 C

LA
IM

S 
A

N
D

 L
O

SS
ES

.

PERMIT SET12/11/231

212 SE 34th Street
Suite 2
Bentonville, AR 72712
479.986.4400
core-states.com

TK002

GENERAL NOTES

GENERAL NOTE:

A. CONTRACTORS MUST HAVE AT LEAST 5 YEARS EXPERIENCE INSTALLING RETAIL FUEL SYSTEMS AND COMPLY WITH
THE FOLLOWING IN ORDER TO BID ON ANY CIRCLE K PROJECT OR BE INVOLVED ON ANY CONSTRUCTION:

A.1. AMERON CERTIFICATION
A.2. NUPI CERTIFICATION
A.3. BRAVO CERTIFICATION
A.4. FLEXING CERTIFICATION
A.5. EMCO WHEATON CERTIFICATION
A.6. GILBARCO/VEEDER-ROOT CERTIFICATION
A.7. CONTAINMENT SOLUTIONS/XERXES/MODERN WELDING CERTIFICATION & COMPLY WITH INSTALLATION

INSTRUCTIONS
A.8. HAZWOPPER & TRENCH EXCAVATION TRAINING

B. IT IS REQUIRED THAT ONLY "CERTIFIED INSTALLERS" BE USED FOR INSTALLATION OF THE PIPING SYSTEM TO INSURE
THAT PROPER PIPE FABRICATION, COUPLING AND INSTALLATION PERFORMED. "CERTIFIED INSTALLERS" ARE
EQUIPPED WITH FACTORY MANUFACTURED COUPLING EQUIPMENT AND INSTALLATION TOOLS AND HAVE
RECEIVED FACTORY TRAINING BY AMERON AND NUPI REPRESENTATIVES ON THE PROPER INSTALLATION AND
TESTING PROCEDURES.

THIS ENVIRONMENTALLY SAFE, FLEXIBLE UNDERGROUND PIPING SYSTEM PROVIDES PIPING RUNS BETWEEN USTS
AND THE PRODUCT DISPENSERS

C. ALL PRODUCT PIPING IS TO BE PRIMARY FUEL OF SPECIFIED DIAMETER IN SECONDARY PIPING OF SPECIFIED
DIAMETER. PIPING TO BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURERS INSTRUCTIONS.

D. WHERE FLEX CONNECTORS ARE COMPLETELY CONTAINED (NOT IN CONTACT WITH GROUND WATER, NATIVE
SOIL OR BACKFILL MATERIAL), STAINLESS STEEL CONNECTORS ARE ACCEPTABLE. WHERE FLEX CONNECTORS ARE
NOT COMPLETELY CONTAINED ISOLATION BOOTS OR PRIME AND WARP SHALL BE USED TO SEPARATE
CONNECTOR FROM COMING INTO CONTACT WITH GROUND WATER, NATIVE SOIL OR BACKFILL MATERIAL. ALL
FLEX CONNECTORS SHALL BE INSTALLED AS STRAIGHT AS POSSIBLE.

E. THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR ACCEPTS FULL RESPONSIBILITY FOR PROPER HANDLING AND INSTALLATION OF
PIPING SYSTEM. THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL INSURE THAT GOOD WORKMANSHIP AND CONSTRUCTION
PROCEDURES ARE FOLLOWED THROUGHOUT THE INSTALLATION, REGARDLESS OF INCLUSION OR OMISSION OF
ANY APPLICABLE SUGGESTION IN THESE INSTRUCTIONS OR ON THE DRAWINGS.

F. UNKNOWN SITUATIONS OR CONDITIONS NOT COVERED IN THESE INSTRUCTIONS ARE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE
CONTRACTOR. MANUFACTURERS SPECIALISTS ARE AVAILABLE FOR CONSULTATION. THE PRESENCE OF THE
OWNER'S OR MANUFACTURER'S REPRESENTATIVE AT AN INSTALLATION SITE DOES NOT RELIEVE THE CONTRACTOR
OF THE RESPONSIBILITY FOR A PROPER INSTALLATION. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PROPER
SAFEGUARDING OF THE INSTALLATION AND MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT STORED ON THE SITE TO PREVENT THEFT,
VANDALISM OR DAMAGE.

RESPONSIBILITY NOTE:

PETROLEUM SYSTEM ELECTRICIAN IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL POWER WIRING, LOW VOLTAGE WIRING, ATG
SENSOR/PROBE WIRING, AND SETUP.

PETROLEUM CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR DISPENSER/SYSTEM START-UP AND CALIBRATION.

ON DAY OF SYSTEM STARTUP, DATA/NETWORK SUPPLIER, PETROLEUM CONTRACTOR, PETROLEUM ELECTRICIAN, AND
CK CONSTRUCTION MANAGER MUST BE ON SITE.

PETROLEUM CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO BE ON SITE FOR THE ENTIRETY OF THE FIRST DAY OF STORE OPERATION (7AM
- 6PM)

CONCRETE NOTE:

UPON INSTALLATION & APPROVALS OF NEW PIPING, CONDUIT, PLUMBING, ETC. FOR THE TANK INSTALLATION, BACKFILL
EXCAVATION AREAS WITH APPROVED BACKFILL, AND PROVIDE CONCRETE PAVING PER CIVIL. NOTE: MINIMUM
REQUIREMENTS. 8" THICK, 4000 P.S.I. MIN. REQ'D @ TANK AREAS W/ NO. 4 BARS @ 12" O.C.E.W. (TYP). PROVIDE 6" THICK
MIN. CONC W/ NO. 4'S 18" O.C.E.W. REINFORCING AT PIPING TRENCHES. FINISH SHALL BE WOOD FLOAT WITH MEDIUM
BROOM FINISH.

A MEDIUM BROOM FINISH IS REQUIRED ON THE CONCRETE PAVING LOCATED BETWEEN THE GASOLINE ISLANDS AND
THE SIDEWALK IN FRONT OF THE CIRCLE K BUILDING. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE TEST AREA FOR CIRCLE K
REPRESENTATIVE APPROVAL.

SETTLEMENT NOTE:

CAUTION TANK SETTLEMENT, TANK DISTORTION, OR MOVEMENT IN CONCRETE COVER SLAB CANNOT BE TOLERATED
AND IF SPECIFIED MATERIALS ARE USED AND SPECIFIED PROCEDURES ARE FOLLOWED, NO INSTALLATION FAILURE
SHOULD OCCUR, IT WILL BE PRESUMED THE CONTRACTOR HAS NOT FOLLOWED THE SPECIFIED INSTRUCTIONS AND
PROCEDURES AND THE CONTRACTOR SHALL IMMEDIATLY UNDERTAKE, AT HIS SOLE EXPENSE, ANY NECESSARY
CORRECTIVE MEASURES, AS MAY BE APPROVED BY THE CIRCLE K FIELD REPRESENTATIVE, UP TO AND INCLUDING
COMPLETE REMOVAL AND RESETTING OF ALL UNDERGROUND TANKAGE AT THE SITE. IF IT IS DETERMINED THAT
MOVEMENT, SETTLEMENT OR DISTORTION HAS BEEN CAUSED BY FACTORS BEYOND THE CONTRACTOR'S CONTROL, THE
COST OF REMEDIAL MEASURES WILL BE BORNE BY OTHERS. THE GAS INSTALLATION CONTRACTOR DOES HEREBY AGREE
TO GUARANTEE THE UNDERGROUND TANKAGE INSTALLATION AGAINST FAILURE AS OUTLINED HEREIN ABOVE, FOR A
PERIOD OF ONE (1) YEAR FROM DATE OF FINAL ACCEPTANCE.

TANK BACKFILL REQUIREMENTS

UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK  BACKFILL MUST ADHERE TO MANUFACTURER MATERIAL REQUIREMENTS AND
COMPLIANCE TO STANDARDS

POLICY

IN ORDER TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE TO UST MANUFACTURER'S REQUIREMENTS FOR UST BACKFILL MATERIALS,
PROCEDURES WILL BE FOLLOWED TO MONITOR APPROVAL BY MANUFACTURER, VERIFICATION THAT APPROVED
MATERIAL HAS BEEN DELIVERED TO THE SITE, AND DOCUMENTATION ON THE CONSISTENCY OF MATERIAL PLACED IN
THE UST EXCAVATION.

PROCEDURE

SPECIFICATIONS FOR ACCEPTABLE MATERIALS TO BE USED AS STRUCTURAL SUPPORT FOR FIBERGLASS USTS.

ROUNDED GRAVEL
WHEN USING ROUNDED GRAVEL, THE MATERIAL IS THE BE A MIX OF ROUNDED PARTICLES, SIZES BETWEEN 1/8" AND 3/4".
THE ROUNDED GRAVEL MUST CONFORM TO THE SPECIFICATIONS OF ASTM C-33, PARAGRAPH 9.1, SIZES 6, 67, OR 7. NO
MORE THAN 5% (BY WEIGHT) OF THE BACKFILL MAY PASS THROUGH A #8 SIEVE. THE MATERIAL IS TO BE WASHED,
FREE-FLOWING, AND FREE OF ICE, SNOW, AND DEBRIS.

CRUSHED STONE
WHEN USING CRUSHED STONE, THE MATERIAL IS TO BE A MIX OF ANGULAR PARTICLES, SIZES BETWEEN 1/8" AND 1/2".
THE CRUSHED STONE MUST CONFORM TO THE SPECIFICATIONS OF ASTM C-33, PARAGRAPH 9.1, SIZES 7 OR 8. NO MORE
THAN 5% (BY WEIGHT) OF THE BACKFILL MAY PASS THROUGH A #8 SIEVE. THE MATERIAL IS TO BE WASHED,
FREE-FLOWING, AND FREE OF ICE, SNOW, AND DEBRIS.

APPROVAL PROCESS

ROUNDED GRAVEL
A SAMPLE CONSISTING OF THREE (3) SEPARATE RANDOM INTERIOR STOCKPILE SAMPLES SHALL BE TAKEN AT THE
QUARRY BY THE MATERIALS TESTING COMPANY. CLEAN ONE GALLON SIZED BUCKETS (APPROXIMATE) CAN BE USED
FOR SAMPLING.

THE MATERIALS TESTING COMPANY SHALL COMPLETE A SIEVE ANALYSIS ON THIS MATERIAL AS IT HAS BEEN COMBINED.
IF THIS MATERIAL MEETS THE ASTM C-33 SPECIFICATIONS, THE ANALYSIS SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE TANK
MANUFACTURER FOR APPROVAL. THE TANK MANUFACTURER WILL ISSUE AN APPROVAL ON THAT SAMPLE AS
REFERENCED TO A SPECIFIC QUARRY. THIS PROCESS SHOULD TAKE ABOUT TWO DAYS.

WITH ROUNDED GRAVEL ONLY, IT WILL BE NECESSARY TO OBTAIN A NEW SAMPLE ON EACH INSTALLATION AS LONG AS
THE QUARRY REMAINS THE SAME. AN APPROVAL FROM THE TANK MANUFACTURER WILL ONLY BE NEEDED ONCE TO
DOCUMENT THE APPROVAL OF THE ROCK. IT WILL NOT BE NECESSARY TO ASK FOR APPROVAL ON ADDITIONAL
INSTALLATIONS, UNLESS THE QUARRY LOCATION CHANGES.

IT WILL BE THE TANK INSTALLATION CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO VERIFY THAT ANY MATERIAL THAT HAS BEEN
APPROVED BY THE TANK MANUFACTURER ALWAYS COMES FROM THE SAME QUARRY AND REMAINS CONSISTENT.

CRUSHED STONE
A SAMPLE CONSISTING THREE (3) SEPARATE RANDOM INTERIOR STOCKPILE SAMPLES SHALL BE TAKEN AT THE QUARRY
BY THE MATERIALS TESTING COMPANY. CLEAN ONE GALLON (APPROXIMATE) SIZED BUCKETS CAN BE USED FOR
SAMPLING.

THE MATERIALS TESTING COMPANY SHALL COMPLETE A SIEVE ANALYSIS ON THIS MATERIAL AS IS HAS BEEN COMBINED.
IF THIS MATERIAL MEETS THE ASTM C-33 SPECIFICATIONS WITH NO VARIATION, IT WILL NOT BE NECESSARY TO SUBMIT A
SIEVE ANALYSIS FOR APPROVAL BY THE TANK MANUFACTURER. IT IS NOT UNCOMMON TO RECEIVE AN ANALYSIS THAT
INDICATES MATERIAL SIZES OUTSIDE OF THE ASTM-33 STANDARD. THESE VARIABLE REPORTS WILL NEED TO BE SUBMITTED
TO THE TANK MANUFACTURER FOR APPROVAL. THIS PROCESS SHOULD TAKE ABOUT TWO DAYS.

A NEW SAMPLE AND SIEVE ANALYSIS WILL BE REQUIRED FOR EVERY LOCATION AS WELL AS AN APPROVAL FROM THE
TANK MANUFACTURER.

ON CRUSHED STONE ONLY, CIRCLE K WILL REQUIRE AN ON-SITE INSPECTION AND DOCUMENTATION BY THE TESTING
COMPANY AS TO THE CONSISTENCY OF THE MATERIAL DELIVERED TO THE SITE AND ITS SIMILARITY TO THE MATERIAL
APPROVED BY THE TANK MANUFACTURER. CIRCLE K WILL ALSO REQUIRE TESTING COMPANY DOCUMENTATION TO
VERIFY THAT THE MATERIAL PLACED IN THE TANK EXCAVATION REMAINS CONSISTENT THROUGHOUT THE BACKFILL
PROCESS.

MATERIAL DISCOVERED ON SITE THAT DOES NOT MEET THE ASTM C-33 SPECIFICATION, FOR ANY REASON, WILL BE
REMOVED AND REPLACED AT THE UST INSTALLERS EXPENSE.

TANK AND DISPENSER NOTE:

A. THE SPECIFIC SITE PLAN AND SPECIFICATIONS WILL GOVERN THE EXACT LOCATION, NUMBER, SIZE, AND TYPE OF
EQUIPMENT TO BE INSTALLED AND INSTALLATION TO BE FOLLOWED.

B. PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS REPRESENT MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAKE THE INSTALLATION
IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S, FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL ORDINANCES WHEN SUCH
ORDINANCES EXCEED THESE MINIMUMS.

C. CONTRACTOR SHALL SECURE, ARRANGE FOR AND PAY FOR ALL NECESSARY PERMITS, INSPECTIONS, AND TESTS
AND INCLUDE THE COST IN THEIR BID (UNLESS SPECIFIED DIFFERENTLY IN SCOPE OF WORK).

D. THE SCOPE OF WORK OR SPECIFICATIONS WILL LIST MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT TO BE FURNISHED BY CIRCLE K.
CONTRACTOR SHALL STORE, SAFEGUARD AND FURNISH ALL OTHER MATERIALS REQUIRED TO COMPLETE THE
INSTALLATION.

E. MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS FOR INSTALLATION AND OPERATIONAL TESTING OF ALL TANKS, PIPING,
DISPENSERS, AND MONITORING EQUIPMENT SHALL BE FOLLOWED TO AVOID POSSIBILITY OF DAMAGE TO
EQUIPMENT.

F. ALL INSTALLATIONS SHALL INCLUDE THE INSTALLATION OF STAGE I VAPOR RECOVERY.

G. CONTRACTOR SHALL PLACE ALL UNDERGROUND PIPING WHERE SHOWN WITH A MINIMUM NUMBER OF BENDS
AND CONTINUOUSLY PITCHED TO PROVIDE MAXIMUM SLOPE FROM RISER TO THE LOW POINT AT THE
CONNECTION. MINIMUM SLOPE OF 1/8" PER FOOT. INSTALL ALL PRODUCT AND VENT LINES IN A COMMON
TRENCH.

H. ALL PRODUCT LINES SHALL BE DOUBLE WALL FLEX PIPE. ALL VENT LINES (UNDERGROUND) SHALL BE FIBERGLASS
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. ALL PRODUCT LINES SHALL BE NUPI SMARTFLEX. ALL VENT LINES SHALL BE AMERON
DUALOY 3000/L.

I. CONTRACTOR SHALL IDENTIFY UNDERGROUND PIPING, AND VENT PIPING ONCE IT HAS BEEN BACKFILLED AND
COVERED UP SO FINISH GRADING AND CONCRETE CONTRACTOR KNOW WHERE UNDERGROUND PIPING IS
LOCATED.

PIPE TRENCH NOTE:

PIPING TRENCH LINERS SHALL BE 6oz NON-WOVEN GEOTECH FABRIC - OVERLAP TOP COURSE. CONTACT LOCAL
CIRCLE K REPRESENTATIVE FOR LOCAL REQUIREMENTS.

FINISH NOTE:

(ALL PRODUCTS ARE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS)

A. BOLLARDS: N/A - SLEEVED PER ARCH.
ISLAND FORMS (IF REQUIRED BY AHJ): AMARILLO WHITE
VENT PIPE: AMARILLO WHITE

CANOPY NOTE:

CANOPY IS A PREFAB STEEL STRUCTURE, CONTACT CIRCLE K REPRESENTATIVE FOR NAME OF MANUFACTURER, SEE
MANUFACTURER'S DRAWING FOR STRUCTURAL DESIGN AND INSTALLATION INFORMATION. SEE ARCHITECTURAL SITE
FOR LOCATION OF CANOPY AND GAS ISLANDS. THE GASOLINE CANOPY STRUCTURE IS FURNISHED AND INSTALLED BY
CIRCLE K.

INSTALLATION NOTE:

CANOPY TANKS AND BUILDING TO BE INSTALLED AT THE SAME TIME. THESE PLANS MUST BE USED IN COORDINATION
WITH SEPARATE SITE, BUILDING AND CANOPY PLANS.

CONTRACTOR NOTE:

A. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO REVIEW ALL OF THE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS
ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PROJECT WORK SCOPE PRIOR TO THE INITIATION OF CONSTRUCTION. SHOULD THE
CONTRACTOR FIND A CONFLICT WITH THE DOCUMENTS RELATIVE TO THE SPECIFICATIONS OR APPLICABLE
CODES, IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPOSIBILITY TO NOTIFY THE PROJECT ENGINEER OF RECORD IN WRITING
PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION. FAILURE BY THE CONTRACTOR TO NOTIFY THE PROJECT ENGINEER
SHALL CONSTITUTE ACCEPTANCE OF FULL RESPONSIBILITY  BY THE CONTRACTOR TO COMPLETE THE SCOPE OF
WORK AS DEFINED BY THE DRAWINGS AND IN FULL CONFORMANCE WITH LOCAL REGULATIONS AND CODES.

B. THE CONTRACTOR ACCEPTS FULL RESPONSIBILITY FOR PROPER HANDLING AND INSTALLATION OF THE GASOLINE
USTS AND SHALL INSURE THAT GOOD WORKMANSHIP PRACTICES AND CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES ARE
FOLLOWED REGARDLESS OF THE INCLUSION OR OMISSION OF ANY INSTRUCTION.

C. UNKNOWN SITUATIONS OR CONDITIONS NOT COVERED IN THESE AND THE MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS ARE
THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR. MANUFACTURER'S SPECIALISTS ARE AVAILABLE FOR CONSULTATION.
THE PRESENCE OF THE MANUFACTURER OR OBSERVER AT AN INSTALLATION SITE DOES NOT RELIVE THE
CONTRACTOR OF HIS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE PROPER INSTALLATION OF THE TANKS.

D. QUESTIONS REGARDING INSTALLATION PROCEDURES OR TANK REPAIRS SHOULD BE DIRECTED TO THE CIRCLE K
FIELD REPRESENTATIVE.

E. GASOLINE UNDERGROUND TANKS MUST BE INSTALLED ACCORDING TO THESE INSTRUCTIONS, THE
MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS AND NFPA 30 AND 30A UL971. LOCAL CODES MAY APPLY AND MUST BE
ADHERED TO. FAILURE TO FOLLOW THESE INSTALLATIONS INSTRUCTIONS WILL VOID THE WARRANTY AND WILL
RESULT IN TANK FAILURE. PROPER INSTALLATION OF GASOLINE USTS HELP PREVENT TANK DAMAGE AND SHOULD
INSURE LONG-TERM CORROSION-PROOF SERVICE. IT IS IMPERATIVE TO READ, UNDERSTAND AND FOLLOW THESE
INSTRUCTIONS.

F. THESE SPECIFICATIONS ARE SUPPLEMENTED BY THE RESPECTIVE TANK MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS. THE
INSTALLATION PROCEDURE SHALL COMPLY WITH BOTH SETS OF INSTRUCTIONS AND SPECIFICATIONS. IF, IN THE
CONTRACTOR'S JUDGEMENT, THERE APPEARS TO BE A CONFLICT IN THESE SPECIFICATIONS AND THE TANK 
MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS, CONTACT THE LOCAL CIRCLE K REPRESENTATIVE FOR CLARIFICATION AND
GUIDANCE.

G. CONTRACTOR SHALL INSPECT AND CONFIRM ALL PIPING TO BE CLEAR OF ALL BEDDING MATERIAL, TRASH, ANY
TYPE OF LIQUID OR DEBRIS PRIOR TO AND AFTER INSTALLATION.

I. TANK AND PRODUCT LINE TESTING AND REPORTING REQUIRED. COORDINATE REQUIREMENTS WITH CIRCLE K
REPRESENTATIVE.

J. TANK TIGHTNESS TESTING PROCEDURES SHALL BE FOLLOWED FOR ALL TANKS BEING INSTALLED.  TESTING DATA
LOG SHALL BE COMPLETED BY THE CONTRACTOR AND SUBMITTED TO THE CIRCLE K REPRESENTATIVE AFTER
TESTING IS COMPLETE. CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO RETAIN A COPY AS PART OF THE TANK RECORDS THAT MAY BE
REQUIRED BY FEDERAL, STATE AND/OR LOCAL REGULATIONS AND CODES.

K. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TANK EXCAVATION HOLE PROTECTION AT AL TIMES UNTIL PAVING IS IN PLACE
PER OSHA STANDARD 1910. COVERS AND/OR GUARDRAILS SHALL BE PROVIDED TO PROTECT PERSONNEL FROM
THE HAZARDS OF OPEN PITS, TANK VATS, DITCHES, ETC.

L. ALL TANK, TRANSITION, AND DISPENSER SUMPS SHALL BE COVERED DURING CONSTRUCTION TO PREVENT DEBRIS
AND WATER FROM ACCUMULATING. ANY ACCUMULATION SHALL BE REMOVED AND SUMPS KEPT CLEAN.

rkientz
Snapshot



1-STORY MASONRY BUILDING1525 SQ. FEET ±

SO
U

TH
 SA

G
IN

A
W

 B
O

U
LEVA

R
D

(A
K

A
 U

.S. H
IG

H
W

A
Y N

O
. 81)

TANK

A
C

C
E

S
S

EXG. FUELCANOPYOVERHANG

EXG. FUELCANOPYOVERHANG

10' REAR SETBACKPER ZONING REPORT

TANKREMOVE CURB, SIDEWALK AND PAVING AS REQUIRED
FOR NEW DEF TANK PAD, PIPING, AND ELECTRICAL

CONDUIT TRENCHING. PATCH AND REPAIR AS REQUIRED.

NEW DEF TANK PAD AND
ABOVE GROUND TANK
LOCATION.

LOCATE REMOVE AND RELOCATE ALL
EXISTING DEF AND VENT PIPING ACCORDING

TO ALL FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL
REGULATIONS AND AUTHORITIES HAVING
JURISDICTION. FIELD VERIFY LOCATION

DEMO EXISTING DEF
TANK PAD. PATCH AND
REPAIR AS REQUIRED

EXTEND ELECTRICAL CIRCUITRY TO
NEW LOCATION. VERFIY CONDUCTOR
SIZE AND VOLTAGE DROP.

EXTEND DEF PIPING THROUGH
TRANSITION SUMP TO DIESEL

FUEL DISPENSERS AS REQUIRED.

3

2

1

PRESERVE AND RELOCATE
DEF TANK, WIRING AND
CONNECTIONS TO NEW

DESIGNATED AREA

5
4

KEY SCHEDULE:                                                    

1. EXISTING ABOVEGROUND DEF STORAGE TANK.

2. NEW TANK PAD FOR RELOCATED DEF TANK.

3. 2"  DOUBLE WALL FLEXIBLE NUPI SMARTFLEX PRODUCT PIPING.

4. ELECTRICAL CONDUIT TRENCH.

5. NEW BRAVO DBL WALL TRANSITION SUMP

LEGEND

DEF
ELEC

TK101

SITE PIPING PLAN

1 SITE PIPING PLAN SCALE: 1" = 10'-0"

DOB SCAN NO.

DESCRIPTIONDATEISSUE

PROJECT INFORMATION

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

AS NOTED

CRK.34611.AE.CRK

CHECKED BY:
DRAWN BY:
SCALE:
DATE:
PROJECT NO:

C
IR

C
LE

 K
C

IR
C

LE
 K

 S
TO

RE
S,

 IN
C

.
UN

IV
ER

SI
TY

 A
V

E.
 &

 1
14

TH
 S

T.
LU

BB
O

C
K,

 T
X 

79
42

4

D
O

C
UM

EN
TS

 P
RE

PA
RE

D
 B

Y 
C

O
RE

ST
A

TE
S,

 IN
C

LU
D

IN
G

 T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

EN
T,

 A
RE

 T
O

 B
E 

U
SE

D
 O

N
LY

 F
O

R 
TH

E
SP

EC
IF

IC
 P

RO
JE

C
T 

A
N

D
 S

PE
C

IF
IC

 U
SE

 F
O

R 
W

H
IC

H
 T

H
EY

 W
ER

E 
IN

TE
N

D
ED

.  
A

N
Y 

EX
TE

N
SI

O
N

 O
F 

US
E 

TO
 A

N
Y

O
TH

ER
 P

RO
JE

C
TS

, B
Y 

O
W

N
ER

 O
R 

BY
 A

N
Y 

O
TH

ER
 P

A
RT

Y,
 W

IT
H

O
UT

 T
H

E 
EX

PR
ES

SE
D

 W
RI

TT
EN

 C
O

N
SE

N
T 

O
F

C
O

RE
ST

A
TE

S,
 IN

C
. I

S 
D

O
N

E 
UN

LA
W

FU
LL

Y 
A

N
D

 A
T 

TH
E 

US
ER

S 
O

W
N

 R
IS

K.
  I

F 
US

ED
 IN

 A
 W

A
Y 

O
TH

ER
 T

H
A

N
 T

HA
T

SP
EC

IF
IC

A
LL

Y 
IN

TE
N

D
ED

, U
SE

R 
W

IL
L 

H
O

LD
 C

O
RE

ST
A

TE
S,

 IN
C

. H
A

RM
LE

SS
 F

RO
M

 A
LL

 C
LA

IM
S 

A
N

D
 L

O
SS

ES
.

PERMIT SET12/11/231

212 SE 34th Street
Suite 2
Bentonville, AR 72712
479.986.4400
core-states.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

rkientz
Snapshot



6"
MIN.

9"

MIN.

9"

MIN.

9"

MIN.

2 Ø DOUBLE WALL PIPES

18" MIN. PEA GRAVEL
BACKFILL ABOVE PIPES.
(VARIES BASED ON PIPE RUNS
AND SLOPES)

3'-6" MIN.

6" MIN. BEARING
TYP. BOTH SIDES

OF TRENCH
6"

6" MIN. PEA GRAVEL BED
UNDER PIPES

REF. CIVIL FOR
PAVEMENT
DESIGN

4'-6"

VARIES BASED ON WIDTH OF
TRENCH WHICH IS DETERMINED BY

NUMBER OF PRODUCT PIPES

KEYWAYKEYWAY

NOTE:
MIN. SPACING MUST BE ADHERED TO PIPE.
(MANUFACTURERS REQUIREMENT)

FILTER FABRIC
(TYP FOR ALL TRENCHES)

WIDTH OF TRENCH
FOR (4) PRODUCT LINES

6"
MIN.

6" DIA. STEEL PIPE GUARD (FILL
WITH CONCRETE)

6"

3'-
0"

4"

24" DIA.

3'-
11

1 2"

6"

4'-
0"

GRAY BOLLARD COVER; REF. ARCH

CONCRETE BASE

ROUNDED CONCRETE TOP

TK504

FUEL SYSTEM
DETAILS

PIPE TRENCH5 SCALE:
1/4" = 1'-0"NOT USED6

SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"3 NOT USED

1a NOT USED SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

API COLOR CODES FOR MANWAYS2

DIESEL EXHAUST FLUID: PAINT DARK BLUE

SCALE:
1/2" = 1'-0"PIPE BOLLARD DETAIL4

1b NOT USED

SCALE: 3/4" = 1'-0"

SCALE: 3/4" = 1'-0"

DOB SCAN NO.

DESCRIPTIONDATEISSUE

PROJECT INFORMATION

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

AS NOTED

CRK.34611.AE.CRK

CHECKED BY:
DRAWN BY:
SCALE:
DATE:
PROJECT NO:

C
IR

C
LE

 K
C

IR
C

LE
 K

 S
TO

RE
S,

 IN
C

.
UN

IV
ER

SI
TY

 A
V

E.
 &

 1
14

TH
 S

T.
LU

BB
O

C
K,

 T
X 

79
42

4

D
O

C
U

M
EN

TS
 P

RE
PA

RE
D

 B
Y 

C
O

RE
ST

A
TE

S,
 IN

C
LU

D
IN

G
 T

H
IS

 D
O

C
UM

EN
T,

 A
RE

 T
O

 B
E 

U
SE

D
 O

N
LY

 F
O

R 
TH

E
SP

EC
IF

IC
 P

RO
JE

C
T 

A
N

D
 S

PE
C

IF
IC

 U
SE

 F
O

R 
W

H
IC

H
 T

H
EY

 W
ER

E 
IN

TE
N

D
ED

.  
A

N
Y 

EX
TE

N
SI

O
N

 O
F 

US
E 

TO
 A

N
Y

O
TH

ER
 P

RO
JE

C
TS

, B
Y 

O
W

N
ER

 O
R 

BY
 A

N
Y 

O
TH

ER
 P

A
RT

Y,
 W

IT
H

O
UT

 T
H

E 
EX

PR
ES

SE
D

 W
RI

TT
EN

 C
O

N
SE

N
T 

O
F

C
O

RE
ST

A
TE

S,
 IN

C
. I

S 
D

O
N

E 
UN

LA
W

FU
LL

Y 
A

N
D

 A
T 

TH
E 

US
ER

S 
O

W
N

 R
IS

K.
  I

F 
US

ED
 IN

 A
 W

A
Y 

O
TH

ER
 T

HA
N

 T
H

A
T

SP
EC

IF
IC

A
LL

Y 
IN

TE
N

D
ED

, U
SE

R 
W

IL
L 

H
O

LD
 C

O
RE

ST
A

TE
S,

 IN
C

. H
A

RM
LE

SS
 F

RO
M

 A
LL

 C
LA

IM
S 

A
N

D
 L

O
SS

ES
.

PERMIT SET12/11/231

212 SE 34th Street
Suite 2
Bentonville, AR 72712
479.986.4400
core-states.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

rkientz
Snapshot



Page 1 of 96 
 

 

ZONING COMPLIANCE REPORT 

Preliminary Draft Report  

Blew Project Number: 23-6706.02 

Report Date: November 29, 2023 

Prepared By: Sidney Hanna 

Company Name: Blew and Associates, P.A.  

3825 North Shiloh Drive, Fayetteville, AR 72703 

www.blewinc.com 

 

PROJECT LOCATION 

Address: 500 South Saginaw Boulevard, Saginaw, Texas 76179 

 

 

PREPARED FOR 

This report is for the benefit of _______________________ 

 

Disclaimer: This Zoning Compliance Report is not a legal opinion and should not be construed as one.  

The information shown herein was obtained from governmental sources, statements of public officials, 

examination of survey, and other documentation provided to, but not prepared by Blew and Associates, 

P.A.  The conclusions given are based on the information and data available to Blew during the 

preparation of this report.  

 



Page 2 of 96 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1) Executive Summary 

 

2) Subject Property 

2.1. Property Address 

2.2. Tax Parcel Number 

2.3. Year Built 

3)  Adjacent Property Zoning 

4)  Certificates of Occupancy 

5)  Right to Rebuild After Casualty (In Event of Nonconforming Status) 

6)  Code Violations 

7)  Zoning Requirements 

7.1 Building Setbacks Requirements 

7.2 Height Requirements 

7.3 Lot Size  

7.4 Density Requirements 

7.5 Parking 

7.6 Nonconformities 

8)  Information Sources 

9)  Supporting Documentation 

 9.1 Municipality Zoning Verification Letter and Additional Correspondence 

 9.2 Certificate of Occupancy 

 9.3 Site Plans and additional documents provided by Municipality 

 9.4 Zoning Map  

 9.5 Zoning Code Pages 

 9.6 Survey  

  

 

 



Page 3 of 96 
 

1) EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Circle K – 2 sites TX  

500 South Saginaw Boulevard 

Saginaw, Texas 76179 

Jurisdiction: City of Saginaw 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The current zoning district for the subject property "CC" Community Commercial within the Saginaw 

Boulevard Overlay District.  The use of gas station is permitted by right in the "CC" Community 

Commercial within the Saginaw Boulevard Overlay District zoning district. Information regarding open 

zoning, building, and fire code violations has been requested and will be forwarded upon receipt. No 

variances, exceptions, or conditions have been disclosed that would affect the subject property.  The 

property is considered to be conforming to current zoning district requirements as noted herein. Upon 

comparing applicable zoning code requirements to existing property conditions as noted on the survey, 

no known nonconformities were disclosed with regard to setback, height, lot area, floor area ratio or 

parking. 

 

 

 

 

 

Zoning District: "CC" Community Commercial within the 

Saginaw Boulevard Overlay District 

Is the Current Use Permitted?  Yes, the use of a gas station is 

permitted. 

Code Violations? 

Zoning: Pending Verification  

Building: Pending Verification  

Fire: Pending Verification 

 

CO’s Attached: Pending Receipt 

Nonconformities? None 

Status: Legal Conforming as noted herein  

 



Page 4 of 96 
 

2) SUBJECT PROPERTY 

2.1 Property Address: 500 South Saginaw Boulevard, Saginaw, Texas 76179 

2.2  Tax Parcel Number: 02309270 

2.3 Year Built: 1980 

 

3) ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING 

North: “CF” Community Commercial District within the Saginaw Boulevard Overlay District 

South: "CC" Community Commercial within the Saginaw Boulevard Overlay District 

East: South Saginaw Boulevard 

West: "CC" Community Commercial within the Saginaw Boulevard Overlay District 

 

4) CERTIFICATES OF OCCUPANCY 

This information has been requested and will be updated upon receipt. 

 

5) RIGHT TO REBUILD AFTER CASUALTY 

Per City of Saginaw Zoning Code Section 4-6 Nonconforming Structures: 

“Should such nonconforming building or nonconforming portion of a building be destroyed by any 

means to an extent of more than 50 percent of its replacement cost at the time of destruction, or 50 

percent of the area of the structure, it shall not be reconstructed except in conformity with the provisions 

of this ordinance, or when approved by the board of adjustment, after public hearing thereon, when the 

board's findings, having due regard for the property rights of persons affected, were considered in the 

light of public welfare and the character of the area surrounding the nonconforming building and the 

conservation and protection of property.” 

 

6) CODE VIOLATIONS 

Building: This information has been requested and will be updated upon receipt. 

Fire: This information has been requested and will be updated upon receipt. 

Zoning: This information has been requested and will be updated upon receipt. 

 

  



Page 5 of 96 
 

7)  ZONING REQUIREMENTS 

Required conditions taken from zoning code pages enclosed herein.  Existing conditions taken from survey 

enclosed herein.  The requirements noted below are derived from the following Code sections 6-14 and 8-9, 

unless otherwise noted. The determination of front, rear and side setbacks set forth in this report are open for 

interpretation by the local municipality.  Blew and Associates, P.A. cannot certify to the reliability of the same. 

There are no additional zoning regulations within the Saginaw Boulevard Overlay District. 

 

7.1 Building Setback Requirements: Required: Existing: 

Minimum front 20’ 48.3’ 

Minimum side None 61.2’ 

Minimum street side 15’ 61.2’ 

Minimum rear 10’ 60.5’ 

Does existing building conform to setback 

restrictions? Yes 
 

7.2 Height Requirements: Required: Existing: 

Maximum (measured in feet): 110’ 14.4’ ± 

Maximum (number of stories): 8 Stories 1 Story 

Does existing building conform to height 

restrictions? Yes 
 

7.3 Lot Size Requirements: Required: Existing: 

Minimum lot area N/A 25,804 Square Feet ± 

Minimum lot width N/A 150.00’ 

Minimum lot frontage None Stated 325.20’ 

Does existing development conform to lot 

size restrictions? Yes 
 

7.4 Density Requirements: Required: Existing: 

Maximum floor area ratio None Stated 0.05 ± 

Maximum lot coverage (for building) 50% 1,525 Square Feet ± (5%) 

Maximum units per acre None Stated N/A 

Does existing building conform to density 

restrictions? Yes 

 

7.5 Parking Requirements: Required: Existing: 

Number of parking spaces  Minimum of 6  6 Spaces 

Parking Space Formula: Minimum of 6 

Parking Space Calculation: N/A 

Does existing development conform to the 

required parking?  Yes 

 

 



Page 6 of 96 
 

7.6 Nonconformities 

None found   

 

 

8) INFORMATION RESOURCES 

Municipality  

Victor Trevino 

Planning and Zoning 

817-230-0040 

 

Surveyor 

BRADLEY G. WELLS 

RPLS NO. 5499 

STATE OF TEXAS 

TEXAS FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 10194275  

Blew and Associates, PA Job #23-6706 

Survey Field Date: October 05, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 7 of 96 
 

9) SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Disclaimer: Blew obtained data related to the subject property from secondary sources, including, but 

not limited to, municipal jurisdictions, the Client and its representatives, designated site contact, 

property owner and authorized representatives, online sources, and interviews. This assessment includes 

data and determinations reasonably made following review of available data, which Blew assumes to be 

correct and accurate. Should other information be provided subsequent to our assessment that is 

materially different than data reviewed and relied upon at the of the assessment, our opinions and 

findings may change accordingly. As such, Blew makes no guarantee as to the accuracy and/or 

reliability of information provided during the course of our limited assessment activities. 

 

 

 

 

Pending Receipt. 

 

 

 

 

 

9.1 Municipality Zoning 

Verification Letter and 

Additional Correspondence 

 



Page 8 of 96 
 

 

 



Page 9 of 96 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pending Receipt. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.2 Certificate of 

Occupancy 

 



Page 10 of 96 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pending Additional Documents. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.3 Site Plans and additional 

documents provided by 

Municipality 



Page 11 of 96 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Disclaimer: Zoning maps, ordinances, districts and other municipal designations can change over time. 

As such, the findings presented herein apply strictly to the zoning code in place at the time of the 

assessment as provided by the applicable jurisdiction. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.4 Zoning Map 

 



Page 12 of 96 
 

 

 



Page 13 of 96 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.5 Zoning Code 

Pages 

 



Page 14 of 96 
 

 



Page 15 of 96 
 

 



Page 16 of 96 
 

 



Page 17 of 96 
 

 



Page 18 of 96 
 

 



Page 19 of 96 
 

 



Page 20 of 96 
 

 



Page 21 of 96 
 

 



Page 22 of 96 
 

 



Page 23 of 96 
 

 



Page 24 of 96 
 

 



Page 25 of 96 
 

 



Page 26 of 96 
 

 



Page 27 of 96 
 

 



Page 28 of 96 
 

 



Page 29 of 96 
 

 



Page 30 of 96 
 

 



Page 31 of 96 
 

 



Page 32 of 96 
 

 



Page 33 of 96 
 

 



Page 34 of 96 
 

 



Page 35 of 96 
 

 



Page 36 of 96 
 

 



Page 37 of 96 
 

 



Page 38 of 96 
 

 



Page 39 of 96 
 

 



Page 40 of 96 
 

 



Page 41 of 96 
 

 



Page 42 of 96 
 

 



Page 43 of 96 
 

 



Page 44 of 96 
 

 



Page 45 of 96 
 

 



Page 46 of 96 
 

 



Page 47 of 96 
 

 



Page 48 of 96 
 

 



Page 49 of 96 
 

 



Page 50 of 96 
 

 



Page 51 of 96 
 

 



Page 52 of 96 
 

 



Page 53 of 96 
 

 



Page 54 of 96 
 

 



Page 55 of 96 
 

 



Page 56 of 96 
 

 



Page 57 of 96 
 

 



Page 58 of 96 
 

 



Page 59 of 96 
 

 



Page 60 of 96 
 

 



Page 61 of 96 
 

 



Page 62 of 96 
 

 



Page 63 of 96 
 

 



Page 64 of 96 
 

 



Page 65 of 96 
 

 



Page 66 of 96 
 

 



Page 67 of 96 
 

 



Page 68 of 96 
 

 



Page 69 of 96 
 

 



Page 70 of 96 
 

 



Page 71 of 96 
 

 



Page 72 of 96 
 

 



Page 73 of 96 
 

 



Page 74 of 96 
 

 



Page 75 of 96 
 

 



Page 76 of 96 
 

 



Page 77 of 96 
 

 



Page 78 of 96 
 

 



Page 79 of 96 
 

 



Page 80 of 96 
 

 



Page 81 of 96 
 

 



Page 82 of 96 
 

 



Page 83 of 96 
 

 



Page 84 of 96 
 

 



Page 85 of 96 
 

 



Page 86 of 96 
 

 



Page 87 of 96 
 

 



Page 88 of 96 
 

 



Page 89 of 96 
 

 



Page 90 of 96 
 

 



Page 91 of 96 
 

 



Page 92 of 96 
 

 



Page 93 of 96 
 

 



Page 94 of 96 
 

 



Page 95 of 96 
 

 

 



Page 96 of 96 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The survey will be added when it has been finalized. 

9.6 Survey 

 



1.)	Property	Information
Location	of	Property:	500	S.	Saginaw	Blvd

Legal	Description:	Rancho	North	Addition

Lot:	A1A

Block:	7

Addition:	Unit	1

Tract:	

Abstract:	

Survey:	

Zoning:	Saginaw	Overlay	District

Present	Use	and	Improvements	on	Property:

	

	

2.)	Applicant	Information
Applicant	Name:	 Johnna	Domino

Address:	4240	E.	Jurupa	St.	#402,	Ontario	CA	91761

Phone	number:	909-451-3119

	

3.)	Owner	Information
If	Same	as	Applicant,	Please	Mark	this	Box:	

Property	Owner	Name:	Big	Diamond,	LLC

Address:	19500	Bulverde	Rd.	Ste	100	San	Antonio	TX	78250

Phone	Number:	 jdomino@core-states.com

Email:	 jdomino@core-states.com

	

4.)Has	a	previous	application	or	appeal	been	filed	on	the	property?



	 Yes,	Date:	 											 No									

	

5.)	Requested	Action
Specific	Use	Requested:	

Current	use	is	a	convenience	store	with	fuel	sales.	We	would	like	to	keep	this	use	and	make	it	legal	in	this	
zoning	area	instead	of	non	conforming	existing	use.

Application	Justification	for	Request:	

With	the	zoning	changes	we	are	applying	for	the	special	use	permit	to	allow	for	updates	to	be	made	to	the	
fueling	portion	of	the	project,	also	We	would	like	to	keep	this	use	and	make	it	legal	in	this	zoning	area	
instead	of	non	conforming	existing	use,	this	will	also	include	landscaping.

	

6.)	Conditions	of	Permit	Approval
	A	specific	use	permit	shall	not	be	recommended	for	approval	by	the	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission
unless	the	commission	finds	that	all	of	the	following	conditions	have	been	found	to	exist	(ZONING
ORDINANCE,	Article	5,	Section	5-4,	G,	1-13):

	

1.	Does	the	proposed	use	comply	with	all	the	requirements	of	the	zoning	district	in	which	the	property
is	located?																																									

											Yes 																No 									

If	no	is	selected,	please	provide	further	details:

										

2.	Does	the	proposed	use,	as	located	and	configured,	contribute	to	or	promote	the	general	welfare	and
convenience	of	the	city?

											Yes 																No 									

										Please	provide	further	details:

										
The	benefits	of	these	gods	and	services	and	easily	accessible	fuel	outweigh	the	loss	of	or	damage	to	any	
homes,	businesses,	natural	resources,	agricultural	lands,	historical	or	cultural	landmarks	or	sites,	wildlife	
habitats,	parks,	or	natural,	scenic,	or	historical	features	of	significance,	and	outweigh	the	personal	and	
economic	cost	of	any	disruption	to	the	lives,	business,	and	property	of	individuals	affected	by	the	
proposed	use



3.	Do	the	benefits	that	the	city	gains	from	the	proposed	use	outweigh	the	loss	of	or	damage	to	any
homes,	businesses,	natural	resources,	agricultural	lands,	historical	or	cultural	landmarks	or	sites,
wildlife	habitats,	parks,	or	natural,	scenic,	or	historical	features	of	significance,	and	outweigh	the
personal	and	economic	cost	of	any	disruption	to	the	lives,	business,	and	property	of	individuals	affected
by	the	proposed	use?

											Yes 																No 									

										Please	provide	further	details:

										

4.	Have	adequate	utilities,	road	access,	drainage,	and	other	necessary	supporting	facilities	been	or	shall
be	provided?

											Yes 																No 							

										If	no	is	selected,	please	provide	further	details:

											

5.	Does	the	design,	location,	and	arrangement	of	all	public	and	private	streets,	driveways,	parking
spaces,	entrances,	and	exits	provide	for	a	safe	and	convenient	movement	of	vehicular	and	pedestrian
traffic	without	adversely	affecting	the	general	public	or	adjacent	developments?

										Yes 																		No 									

										Please	provide	further	details:

										

6.	Does	the	issuance	of	the	specific	use	permit	not	impede	the	normal	and	orderly	development	and
improvement	of	neighboring	vacant	property?

											Yes 																	No 							

										Please	provide	further	details:

										
Yes,	all	design,	location,	and	arrangement	of	all	public	and	private	streets,	driveways,	parking	spaces,	
entrances,	and	exits	are	built	to	code	and	city	regulations



7.	Is	the	location,	nature,	and	height	of	buildings,	structures,	walls,	and	fences	in	scale	with	the
surrounding	neighborhood?

											Yes 																No 									

										Please	provide	further	details:

										
This	does	not	impede	any	vacant	property

8.	Will	the	proposed	use	be	compatible	with	and	not	injurious	to	the	use	and	enjoyment	of	neighboring
property,	nor	significantly	diminish	or	impair	property	values	within	the	vicinity?

												Yes 																No 											

											Please	provide	further	details:

											

9.	Have	adequate	nuisance	prevention	measures	been	taken	or	shall	be	taken	to	prevent	or	control
offensive	odors,	fumes,	dust,	noise,	vibration,	and	visual	blight?

																						Yes 																No 											

																						Please	provide	further	details:

																					
This	proposed	use	is	compatible	and	does	not	diminish	or	impair	property	values

10.	Has	sufficient	on-site	lighting	been	provided	for	the	adequate	safety	of	patrons,	employees,	and
property,	and	such	lighting	is	adequately	shielded	or	directed	so	as	not	to	disturb	or	adversely	affect	the
neighboring	properties?

																						Yes 																No 											

																						Please	provide	further	details:

																						

11.	Is	there	sufficient	landscaping	and	screening	to	ensure	harmony	and	compatibility	with	adjacent
properties?



																						Yes 																No 											

																						Please	provide	further	details:

																						
Lighting	is	provided	on	the	underside	of	the	canopy	that	extends	from	the	fueling	stations	to	over	the	
convenience	store	to	provide	adequate	lighting	for	all	of	the	above	and	does	not	shine	on	any	other	
properties

12.	Are	the	proposed	operations	consistent	with	the	applicant's	submitted	plans,	master	plans,	and
projections,	or,	where	inconsistencies	exist,	do	the	benefits	to	the	community	outweigh	the	costs?

																						Yes 																No 											

																						If	no	is	selected,	please	provide	further	details:

																						
We	have	landscaping	in	the	plans	we	submitted.

13.	Is	the	proposed	use	in	accordance	with	the	City	of	Saginaw	Comprehensive	Land	Use	Plan?

																							Yes 																No 											

																							If	no	is	selected,	please	provide	further	details:

																						

	

Note:	The	6	sections,	listed	above,	must	be	addressed	for	the	application	to	be	considered
complete.	

In	"Step	5",	please	upload	the	following:

Signed	copy	of	the	required	Letter	of	Acknowledgment
Project	Details	(i.e.	Site	Plan,	Project	Renderings,	Past/Similar	Project	Examples,	etc.)

Fees	will	be	collected	through	the	portal.	Once	everything	has	been	received,	our	team	will	issue	an	invoice
that	must	be	paid	within	24	hours	to	schedule	a	review	date.

https://www.saginawtx.org/departments/public_works/planning___zoning/applications_submissions___fees.php


City of Saginaw

Planning & Zoning Commission Memorandum

Prepared By: Susy Victor

WORKSHOP-- Planning and Zoning Commission Training

Meeting

Tuesday, March 12, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Business Item: 3A

Reference File

Community Goals

Attachments

PZ Training (PPT).pdf

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

The City of Saginaw, Texas has several new Planning and Zoning Commission members. A Planning and Zoning Commission training 

will be led by the City Attorney, Bessie Bronstein from Taylor, Olson, Adkins, Sralla & Elam, L.L.P.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

N/A

RECOMMENDATION:

N/A



Saginaw Planning and Zoning Commission 
Training

March 12, 2024

Bessie Bronstein
bbronstein@toase.com



Open Meetings Act

 Every regular, special or called meeting of 
a governmental body shall be open to the 
public, except as provided by this chapter. 
Section 551.002, Texas Government Code

 A quorum can’t have deliberations outside 
of a meeting about the business of the 
Commission.

 Quorum = simple majority



Conflict of Interest:  LGC 171

 A member has a conflict of interest, 
pursuant to Section 171.001 of the Texas 
Local Government Code, if:
 Business Entity:  the action will have a special 

economic effect on a business entity in which 
the member has a “substantial interest” that 
is distinguishable from the effect on the 
public; or

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
General conflict statute. To begin,Why do we care about conflicts?State law forbids you from participating in certain decisions. Texas conflict of interest statutes do not address every conceivable conflict that may arise for a local official. In fact, Chapter 171 conflict laws are generally financial in nature and cover two main types of conflicts: 1. Business entity conflicts: Conflicts due to you having a substantial financial interest in a “business entity” that has an issue before the Commission; or2. Real property conflicts: Conflicts due to you having a “substantial financial interest” in “real property” that would be affected by the Commission’s action.



Conflict of Interest: LGC 171
 A person has a substantial interest in a 

business entity if the person:
 owns 10% or more of the voting stock or shares of 

the business entity
 owns 10% or more of the fair market value of the 

business entity
 owns $15,000 or more of the fair market value of the 

business entity
 receives funds from the business that are in excess of 

10% of the person’s gross income for the previous 
year

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
The key here is figuring out whether you have a “substantial interest” in a business entity.  Most likely it will be the last bullet point that will apply. Two part test: step one: do you have a substantial interest? That’s what next two slides deal with. If yes: Step two: is it likely that the action would have a special economic effect on the business entity that is distinguishable from its effect on the general public



Conflict of Interest:  LGC 171

 Real Property:  it is reasonably foreseeable that 
an action on the matter will have a special 
economic effect on the value of real property in 
which a member has a “substantial interest” that 
is distinguishable from the effect on the public

 A person has a substantial interest in real 
property if the interest is an equitable or legal 
ownership with a fair market value of $2,500 or 
more

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Again test:Substantial interest? If yes, special economic effect?Let’s look at what a substantial interest in real property is that may create a conflict.



Conflict of Interest

 A member is considered to have a 
“substantial interest” if any of the 
following persons have a substantial 
interest 
 father, mother, son or daughter
 spouse
 spouse’s father, mother, son or daughter
 includes ex-spouse if a child of the marriage is 

still living

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
It isn’t just your own conflicts! In this context, close relatives of an official would include persons who are related to the official within the first degree by consanguinity (blood) or affinity (marriage). Such relatives would include an your father, father-in-law, mother, mother-in-law, children and children in law  and your spouse of the official.However, not your siblings, closest friends, or cousins etc.



Conflict of Interest

 If a person has a conflict of interest, the 
person must:
 file, before a vote or decision on any matter 

involving the business entity or real property, 
an affidavit with the City Secretary stating the 
nature and extent of the interest

 abstain from further participation



Role of the P&Z

 Zoning –
 Chapter 211, Texas Local Gov’t Code
 Zoning Ordinance – Appendix A

 Platting –
 Chapter 212, Tex. Local Gov’t Code
 Subdivision Ordinance – Appendix B



Purpose of the P&Z
1. To identify community needs and to advise the city 

council of their short-range and long-range implications 
for the total development of the city;

2. To recommend achievable community goals as a basis 
for long-range planning and development programs;

3. To recommend plans, programs, and policies that will 
aid the entire community in achieving its defined goals; 
and

4. To interpret the adopted plans and programs to 
concerned citizens so that private activities and desires 
may be accomplished in harmony with public needs 
and policies.

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Article 2 of the City’s zoning code outlines the purpose and duties of the planning and zoning commission. The duties described in the code include inspecting properties and premises at reasonable hours as required; recommending any changes to the city’s plan that would facilitate the health, safety, and general welfare of the city; holding hearings and making recommendations regarding the creation, amendment, implementation of zoning regulations; and providing recommendations on applications and proposals. The full list of duties is available in Section 2-7 of the zoning code.



Zoning
 Zoning regulates how land is used.

 Zoning regulations must be adopted in 
accordance with a comprehensive plan 
(211.004, LGC)

 Saginaw has a Comprehensive Plan 
outlining future land use 
recommendations.



Zoning Ordinance

 Zoning Map: a map that denotes the 
current designations of permitted land 
uses for all of the land within the 
corporate boundaries of the Town.

 Zoning Regulations: the text that dictates 
what the restrictions are in each district.





Zoning Discretion

 General Rule:  broad LEGISLATIVE 
discretion is afforded to local governments 
in zoning matters.

 Presumption of validity.
 Unconstitutional only if shown to bear no 

relationship to securing public safety, 
health, morals or welfare and clearly 
arbitrary and unreasonable.



Standards for Zoning Changes

 Respect the Master Plan
 Consider impact on surrounding properties
 Consider suitability of land as presently zoned
 Consider relationship to public health, safety, 

morals or general welfare



Zoning Decisions

 Permissible factors to consider when making a zoning 
decision:
 The need to allow for the circulation of air and light
 The need to separate structures to avoid fire hazards
 The need to lessen the congestion of traffic
 The need to separate incompatible uses of property
 The impact of density on the infrastructure, utilities, 

schools and other community facilities
 The need to preserve property values



Zoning Decisions

 Permissible factors to consider when making a zoning 
decision:
 The need to preserve neighborhood boundaries and 

the character of the neighborhood
 The need to implement the city’s future land use 

plan
 The need to protect historical structures or 

architecturally significant structures or places
 The need to protect or preserve the environment



Types of Zoning Cases

 Straight Zoning Changes
 Specific Use Permits
 Planned Development Districts



Types of Zoning Cases
 Straight Zoning Change
 Standard regulation of land uses.
 Change from one district type to 

another.  (i.e., AG to SF-1)
 No conditions:  Recommend approval or 

denial.
 Promises not enforceable.



Types of Zoning Cases
 Specific Use Permit (SUP)

 Additional uses allowed in a District after 
review of conditions by P&Z and Council.

 This is an amendment of the zoning ordinance 
and is legislative.

 Conditions may be placed on SUP, either in 
zoning ordinance (all SUPs) or by council  
(specific property).

 A site plan is required for approval of an SUP.

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
SUP provides a mechanism for permitting unusual land uses that aren’t otherwise allowed. Public hearing requiredAn SUP application has to satisfy certain conditions, like compliance with requirements of the zoning district, contribution to the general welfare, favorable cost-benefit analysis, adequate utilities, access, and drainage, traffic and pedestrian plans, consistency with the surrounding area and the city’s comprehensive plan.   



Types of Zoning Cases
 Site Plans

 Required by Sec. 8-1(A) Appendix A
 Must comply with requirements in Sec. 8-1(E) 

Appendix A
 Generally shows the characteristics of the site 

changes related to the development that is 
proposed, how the development will relate to 
public services and facilities, and what 
protection features are included to ensure it is 
compatible with adjacent properties.

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Site plan provides info on components including boundary lines, utilities, easements, roadways, sidewalks, emergency access, public rights of way, topography, flood plains, existing and proposed buildings, parking spaces, points of ingress/egress, setbacks, signs, landscaping, things like that



Types of Zoning Cases

 Planned Development (PD)
 Allows for zoning to be specific to a 

particular parcel.
 The zoning regulations are essentially 

negotiated.
 Conditions may be imposed.
 Development Plan must be presented 

and approved.

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Public hearing required



Super Majority Vote

 Section 1-3(C)(6) Appendix A: ¾ vote of 
city council to approve zoning if:
 P&Z recommends denial; or
 20% or more of the area of lots subject to 

zoning change or those immediately adjacent 
within 200 feet protest.



Straight Zoning vs. PD Zoning
Straight Zoning
 Can Ask About Intended 

Use

 The details of the 
intended use are not 
relevant.

 Not appropriate to set 
conditions of approval.

Planned Development
 Can Ask About Intended 

Use

 The details of the 
intended use are 
relevant.

 Conditions for approval 
are appropriate where 
necessary.



Platting
 Platting is a geographical description that 

aids in recording/land registration.

 Platting serves to divide land into 
marketable parcels and ensures that 
adequate public infrastructure is installed, 
including to ensure that utilities and 
emergency service may be delivered.





Platting

 Purpose is to “promote the health, safety,
morals, or general welfare of the
municipality and the safe, orderly, and
healthful development of the
municipality”. (LGC § 212.002)

 Platting/subdivision regulations apply to
ETJ if city has so extended by ordinance.



Types of Plats

 Preliminary Plat
 Final Plat

 Replats

 Minor Plats/Amending Plats
 Administrative Approval



Platting

 Platting consideration is a ministerial 
function.

 The P&Z Commission does not exercise 
discretion with regard to approval of a 
plat.



HB 3167 (2019)

 Added requirements to the “denial” of a 
plat (denial or conditional approval)

 Reasons for denial must be given in 
writing to the applicant citing to applicable 
state law, state regulation, or City 
ordinance that was not complied with

 Reason for denial cannot be arbitrary



Platting v. Zoning
ZONING

 Zoning regulates how 
land is used.

 Zoning is legislative and 
discretionary.

 You are making the law.

PLATTING

 Platting serves to divide 
land into lots; provide for 
streets, utilities

 Platting “ministerial.”

 Does this comply with the 
law?  Check the boxes.



Summary

 Which hat am I wearing?  Zoning v. Plats
 Is the applicant legally bound to perform 

what he orally promises?
 Can we recommend conditions on 

approval?
 Walking Quorum
 Substantial Interest



Fair Housing Act

 Federal law that prohibits discrimination 
by governmental entities and others.

 Prohibits practices that would make 
housing unavailable to persons because of 
race/color, religion, sex, national origin, 
familial status, or disability.



Fair Housing Act
You may not make a land use decision 
based upon a person’s:
 Demographics
 Familial Status
 Socio-economic Status
 Race/Color
 Disability



Capital Improvement Projects 
Advisory Committee

 Advise & assist with adopting land use 
assumptions;

 Review CI plan & file written comments;
 Monitor and evaluate implementation of CI 

plan;
 File reports on progress and potential 

inequities;
 Advise on need for updates or revisions.

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Land use assumptions = description of the service area and projections of changes in land uses, densities, intensities, and population in the service area over at least a 10-year period. 



Capital Improvement Projects 
Advisory Committee

 Focus on water, wastewater, drainage 
facilities; roadway facilities

 Impact fee = charge or assessment to 
generate revenue

 Local Government Code Chapter 395

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Impact fees are intended to generate revenue for funding or recouping the costs of capital improvements or facility expansions necessitated by and attributable to the new development. Can be used for new or existing facilities. Permitted for capital improvements in the corporate boundaries and ETJ, but only permitted for road improvements within the boundaries. Committee’s role is to provide guidance on any needs for updating land use assumptions, capital improvements plans, and impact fees, as well as for any proposed amendments. This will help the city coordinate the location, timing, and financing of capital improvements. 



Saginaw Planning and Zoning Commission 
Training

February 13, 2024

Bessie Bronstein
bbronstein@toase.com



City of Saginaw

Planning & Zoning Commission Memorandum

Prepared By: Susy Victor

Project Updates
Project updates for February 2024.

Meeting

Tuesday, March 12, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Staff Report Item: 4A

Reference File

Community Goals

Attachments

Project Updates (03.12.24).pdf

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

Please see the attached memo for the latest updates of current projects in the City, please note dates are subject to change.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

N/A

RECOMMENDATION:

N/A



1 | P a g e  
 

 
 
         
 

Project Updates 
Date: March 12, 2024 
To: Chairman and Members of the Planning and Zoning Commission 
From: Susy Victor-Trevino, Planning Manager  
Subject: Current Project Updates in the City of Saginaw, Texas  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Background/Discussion: 
Please see below the latest updates for current projects in the City, please note dates are subject 
to change: 
 

1. Alpine at the Square 
a. 100% Complete: Water, sewer, and storm drain utilities. 
b. In Progress: Concrete paving 
c. Scheduled Completion Date (Public Improvements): 05/10/24 
d. Scheduled Completion Dates (Occupancy): 01/10/25 

 
2. Beltmill Cottages 

a. In Progress: Project is cleaning up to get ready for the city’s final inspection. 
b. Scheduled Completion Date: 04/12/24 

 
3. Beltmill Villas 

a. Complete: Public utilities 
b. In Progress: Contractor is completing misc. items 
c. Scheduled Completion Date: Unknown 

 
4. Cement Creek Phase II 

a. Scheduled Completion Date: 04/08/24 (75% Complete) 
 

5. Foodliner 
a. Complete: 03/05/24 

 
6. ILT 

a. Complete: 02/05/24 
 

7. Kiwanis Veterans Memorial Relocation 
a. Complete: 03/05/24 

 
8. Knowles Reconstruction (Phase I) 

a. Waiting on the contractor to complete the city’s final inspection punch list. 
 

9. Knowles Reconstruction (Phase II) 



2 | P a g e  
 

a. Contract time is 735 calendar days, 158 used to date. 
b. 100 % Complete: Water 
c. 80 % Complete: Storm Drain 
d. 90 % Complete: Paving 
e. In progress: Irrigation, sidewalks, ramps, top soil, and grass. 
f. Scheduled Completion Date: 04/30/24 

 
10. Knowles Reconstruction (Phase III) 

a. In Progress: Water relocations, no other activity at this time. 
 

11. Northwest Booster Pump 
a. In Progress: Waiting for contractor to replace the roof that was damaged during 

transport and for Oncor to run power to pump station. 
 

12. Saginaw Library 
a. 80% Complete: Water installation, no other activity 

 
13. Senior Living Phase III 

a. 100% Complete: Public Improvements 
b. Scheduled Completion Date: 07/10/25 

 
14. Taco Bueno/Papa John’s Restaurant 

a. 100% Complete: Complete waiting on contractors final punch list. 
 

15. Tricon Saginaw  
a. 100% Complete: Public utilities  
b. In Progress: Contractor is working on final punch list. 
b. Scheduled Completion Date: 04/15/24 

 
16. Shell Building (1480 Old Decatur Rd.) 

a. 100% Complete: Public utilities 
b. In Progress: Building structures.  
c. Scheduled Completion Date: Unknown. 

 
17. Switch Yard Improvements 

a. Start Date: 03/05/24 
b. Scheduled Completion Date: 05/10/24 

 
18. UCD Saginaw 

a. In Progress: Contractor is working on the city’s final inspection punch list. 
b. Scheduled Completion Date: 03/25/24 

 
 

**All information received and confirmed by Bill Hurst, Senior Inspection Manager. 
 


	Planning&ZoningCommission-2024-03-12.pdf
	02- Planning and Zoning Commission Members (Packet Version, 09.07.23).pdf
	03- Audience Participation Packet Insert.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	02.13.24.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	SUP (Printed Application).pdf
	SUP (Alternate Option Letter).pdf
	SUP (Site Plan).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	SUP (Plans).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	CK-FGA-TK001 - COVER-TK001
	CK-FGA-TK002 - GENERAL NOTES-Layout1
	CK-FGA-TK101 - SITE PIPING PLAN-TK101 - OPTION A
	CK-FGA-TK504 - FUEL SYSTEM DETAILS-TK504 - ISLAND


	SUP (Zoning Compliance Report).pdf
	SUP Application - 500 S Saginaw Blvd.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	PZ Training (PPT).pdf
	��Saginaw Planning and Zoning Commission Training�February 13, 2024��
	Open Meetings Act
	Conflict of Interest:  LGC 171
	Conflict of Interest: LGC 171
	Conflict of Interest:  LGC 171
	Conflict of Interest
	Conflict of Interest
	Role of the P&Z
	Purpose of the P&Z
	Zoning
	Zoning Ordinance
	Slide Number 12
	Zoning Discretion
	Standards for Zoning Changes
	Zoning Decisions
	Zoning Decisions
	Types of Zoning Cases
	Types of Zoning Cases
	Types of Zoning Cases
	Types of Zoning Cases
	Types of Zoning Cases
	Super Majority Vote
	Straight Zoning vs. PD Zoning
	Platting
	Slide Number 25
	Platting
	Types of Plats
	Platting
	HB 3167 (2019)
	Platting v. Zoning
	Summary
	Fair Housing Act
	Fair Housing Act
	Capital Improvement Projects Advisory Committee
	Capital Improvement Projects Advisory Committee
	��Saginaw Planning and Zoning Commission Training�February 13, 2024��

	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	Project Updates (03.12.24).pdf

